MINUTES

FORT MYERS BEACH

Local Planning Agency Meeting

Town Hall – Council Chambers

2523 Estero Boulevard

Fort Myers Beach, FL 33931

Tuesday, January 12, 2010
I. CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order at 9:05 AM by Chairperson Joanne Shamp.  All members were present:


Rochelle Kay



Alan Mandel



Bill Van Duzer



Carleton Ryffel
Charles Moorefield 


 Staff present:  LPA Attorney Anne Dalton; Community Development Director Dr. Frank Shockey.  
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. INVOCATION-Ms. Kay
IV. MINUTES

A.  Minutes of December 15, 2009
Motion:  Mr. Van Duzer moved to approve the minutes, as corrected below.
Seconded by Ms. Kay; Mr. Ryffel pointed out a discrepancy in the use of the word “for” instead of “to” on page 10;
Vote:   Motion passes 6-0 with the correction.
V. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A.  SEZ2008-003 Richard Parking Lot Hearing and VAR2008-0002
Ms. Dalton swore in the witnesses.  Ms. Shamp called for the Affidavit of Publication and Dr. Shockey confirmed that it appeared in the News-Press on Jan. 2, 2010. Chair asked for disclosure of any ex-parte communications: Mr. Ryffel said he “ran into John (Richard) on the beach” and they talked for a few minutes a several months ago about the application.   
Ms. Deborah Drake, representing Mr. Richard, addressed the LPA and asked for a continuance until October 12, 2010.  Ms. Shamp asked for a reason for the request and Ms. Drake responded “economics.”  
Dr. Shockey agreed that the applicant is entitled to this continuance but commented about the amount of time requested.  Ms. Dalton added that the members might want to consider having the hearing before the current members’ terms expire.  

Ms. Shamp asked for public comment.  No comment, but this was held open.

Motion:     Mr. Ryffel moved to approve the continuance to October 12, 2010 at 9:00 am.
Seconded by Mr. Mandel;
Vote:         Motion passed 6-0. 

This hearing is continued to October 12, 2010 at 9:00 AM.

VI. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
A. Discussion of Language for Ordinance 09-09
Dr. Shockey gave a brief background noting that this item was brought to a hearing at the last meeting and that it has to do with non-movable refuse containers and fences surrounding them.  He added that there are 2 sections of the Code being addressed here, one being refuse container screening and fence heights, and exceptions to the limits on fence height so that fences could be tall enough to screen the containers.  Another change that was heard previously was to require movable and non-movable containers to have lids to keep animals out.  This hearing was continued to February 9, 2010 but Dr. Shockey put some language together to try to address the concerns raised in December, to clarify that containers must be fully screened up to the full height of the container, and that these changes were not to allow that the fences could be shorter than the containers.  He suggested the LPA look at the draft and, if suitable, he could have any additional changes that might be necessary ready for the continued hearing in February.  
Mr. Van Duzer agreed that this is a good idea and that the limit to the height of the enclosure should be adjusted so that all enclosures are sufficient in height to conceal the container.  

Ms. Kay said she approved of the wording.

Mr. Ryffel asked if this wording would allow fences at heights higher than 6 feet if containers were taller than 6 feet.  Dr. Shockey explained that the fence section gives exceptions to the fence heights and but the screening requirement attempts to clarify that whatever the means used to conceal the container must be tall enough to screen the container up to its full height.  Mr. Ryffel pointed out that the last sentence in the draft “but must not exceed 6 feet in height” seems contrary to that.  Dr. Shockey explained that this is a change to the section that limits fence heights; if the LPA wants to recommend allowing screening fences to be even taller than 6 feet, they could discuss this policy, but up to this point the discussion had been that fences for screening could be up to 6 feet even if in the front yard.  There was further discussion about the general heights limits on fences and the requirements to screen refuse containers using fences or some other means.  Mr. Ryffel suggested investigating the sizes of containers available so that they can better set these limits.  He then referred to Sec. 6-11b, wherein it allows using vegetation as a screen and said there are no limitations as to the height and maintenance issues involved with vegetations as an alternative.  Dr. Shockey said that there are restrictions on types of vegetation elsewhere in the Code but that the idea of this section is to simply require that there be screening of some kind that is adequate.  More discussion ensued about this and the restrictions for vegetation.
Mr. Mandel referred to Sec. 34-1744c, where it is stated that you can’t be “more than 42” high in the front yard” and gives exceptions.  He asked if those exceptions meant if you have a larger one, you could go up to 6 feet in the front.  Dr. Shockey agreed that that was the purpose of the recommended change.  
Mr. Moorefield asked if it would be easier to just require that these containers not be visible from the street rather than so many requirements and then the exceptions.  Dr. Shockey explained that without the specifics, people will have different interpretations of what is acceptable.
Mr. Van Duzer suggested trying to re-work the specifics and the language so that this is not so involved.  He agreed that the vegetation option must have restrictions, too, and if this is to make a permanent change to the LDC, it needs to be looked at again with some more time.  
Ms. Shamp opined that this cannot get much simpler than what Dr. Shockey has prepared, pointing out that the members are saying they want it simple but then add their own ideas as to additional restrictions that should be included.  She likes the general limit of 6 feet for all fences because it keeps all fences uniform and does not block views.  She also added that if a fence needs to be higher than 6 feet to conceal the container, vegetation or some other alternative must be used instead of an even taller fence, eliminating the opportunity for residents to use the screening requirement as an excuse to have very tall fences.  She accepts the draft language, as is.  

Mr. Mandel suggested using the word “native” to the area about vegetation.  

Mr. Ryffel suggested other ways that vegetation and decorative garden architecture could be used for this type of screening without building fences.
VII. ADJOURN- LPA, RECONVENE AS HPB

Motion:     Mr. Kay moved to adjourn as the LPA and reconvene as the HPB.

Seconded by Mr. Ryffel;

Vote:          Motion passes 6-0.

Ms. Kay called the HPB meeting to order at 9:40AM and advised that the program to put up the first 3 plaques will be on Jan. 19, 2010 at 3:00 PM.  Ms. Shamp added that the names of the LPA members will be on the back of the programs.  
VIII. HPB MEMBER ITEMS OR REPORTS

A. Discussion of the 2010 budget

Ms. Kay said that the report is not ready yet, as Ms. Shamp added that the resolution to accompany it is not quite done.   Ms. Dalton interrupted that Ms. Schober is present and will address this item.  
Theresa Schober reported that Mr. Smith advised her that there are several businesses downtown that would like historical signage to run on San Carlos Blvd. and said that she realized this was also a desire of the HPB.  Her staff is writing grant proposals now for signage and that this could become a kind of package with the Town’s sign requests to alleviate the costs.  She feels that this is a good way for the HPB to be more involved with the businesses and some of the signage that the LPA already intended to install could be paid for in part by grant funds.  There was discussion about the different locations for these interpretive signs and what they might say.  
Dr. Shockey suggested having Ms. Schober be the conduit to bring the information from this board and the HAC together to present all of it and she could then determine what funding is available, for what and how.  More discussion ensued regarding types of signs, content, regulations, etc.  Mr. Ryffel asked what kind of signs these would be and how they would be displayed.  Ms. Kay referred to some photos she had of similar signs she had seen in Boulder, CO and offered them as an example of the sort of thing that is being proposed.  Ms. Kay volunteered to work with Ms. Schober on this.  
Ms. Schober mentioned that Newton House final inspections are in progress and Town Council will tour it in early February.  

Ms. Shamp explained, particularly to address Mr. Ryffel’s earlier question, the first group of plaques, which are called “Historic Designation,” and said the next group is “Historic Recognition,” and there are plans for a walking tour as well.  
Motion:     Mr. Van Duzer moved to adjourn the HPB and reconvene as the LPA.

Seconded by Ms. Shamp;

Vote:          Motion passes 6-0.


       Meeting adjourned at 10:00 AM.
IX. ADJOURN AS HPB- RECONVENE AS LPA

Ms. Shamp reconvened the LPA at 10:01 AM, all members still present.
X. LPA MEMBER ITEMS AND REPORTS

Mr. Moorefield – nothing to report.

Mr. Mandel – nothing to report.

Mr. Ryffel – nothing to report.

Ms. Shamp – congratulated Dr. Shockey for being named permanent Community Director.
Ms. Kay – nothing to report.

Mr. Van Duzer – nothing to report.

XI. LPA ATTORNEY ITEMS
Reported that Cathie Lewis has been named as Public Works Director.

XII. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR ITEMS
Nothing to report.
XIII. LPA  ACTION ITEMS
Resolutions to Town Council:
· Animal Control-long term – Ms. Kay: February 1, 2010 at 9:00 AM
· Gulfview/ Vacation, continuation-December 21, 2009: Dr. Shockey reported that the Council passed the vacation ordinance

· Pink Shell- expected to be continued to Jan. 19 at 4:00 PM-Ms. Shamp
· Alcoholic beverages-COP expansion on the beach-presentation to Council – 2nd meeting in Feb. (February 16) 
· Jack Green resolution  Feb. 1 at 9:00 AM- Ms. Kay
Continued LPA hearings:  
· Shipwreck – continued to Oct. 12, 2010
· Refuse Containers – continued to Feb. 9, 2010
Future Work Activites: 
· Present residential connection standard, report on pending consultant recommendations Feb. 9
· Storm Water-pending;  Dr. Shockey/Kay/Van Duzer-TBD
· Seasonal Parking report on pending consultant recommendations Feb. 9
· HPB budget-Feb. 9, 2010
· HPB Vistas – Budget Proposal – Ms. Kay
XIV. PUBLIC COMMENT
None.
XV.  ADJOURNMENT
Motion:   Mr. Ryffel moved to adjourn.

Seconded by Ms. Kay;

Vote:       Motion passes 6-0.
Adjourned at 10:14 AM.
Next meeting February 9, 2010 at 9:00 AM
Adopted _______________________ with/without changes.  Motion by ___________________



(DATE)

Vote:______________________  
________________________________________________






Joanne Shamp, LPA Chair

· End of document
LPA-January 7, 2010
Page 5 of 6

